# TOWN COUNCIL Tolland, Connecticut

### **RULES OF PROCEDURE**

(Revised 02/08/22)

#### A. ORDER OF BUSINESS:

- 1. Call to Order
- 2. Pledge of Allegiance
- 3. Moment of Silence
- 4. Proclamations
- 5. Public Petitions, Communications and Public Participation (on any subject within the jurisdiction of the Town Council) (2 minute limit)
- 6. Public Hearing Items

Each item may be handled in the following manner:

- 1. Report of Town Manager or other appropriate official.
- 2. Discussion and questions by Council.
- 3. Comments and questions by public.
- 4. Written testimony submitted for a public hearing shall be included in the meeting packet minutes and include the elector's name and address. The Councilor responsible for reporting correspondence will be responsible for reporting the number of public hearing testimony items received.
- 5. Straw Poll for Public Hearing items may be taken.
- 6. Final discussion and vote of Council.

#### 7a. Reports of Boards and Committees responsible to Council

This item is reserved for Boards & Commissions to update Town Council and may be handled in the following manner:

- 1. Report of the Board or Commission appropriate official.
- 2. Discussion and questions by Council.
- 3. Input and information from the Town Manager.

# 7b. Reports of Town Council Liaisons

- 1. Councilors should identify the board or commission they represent.
- 2. Councilors should briefly summarize the meeting from that board/commission.
- 8. New Business (Action/Discussion Items)
- 9. Old Business (Action/Discussion Items)
- 10. Report of Town Manager (a written report shall be provided the first meeting of the month only)
- 11. Adoption of Minutes

#### **RULES OF PROCEDURE**

Page Two

#### 12. Correspondence to Council

Communications to the Council should be shared as follows:

- 1. Council shall designate a Councilor for the term to present communications at each regular Council meeting.
- 2. The communication shall be highly summarized as follows:
  - a. Identify that a communication was received such as an email or mail from a resident or business.
  - b. Briefly identify the topic of the communication.
- 13. Chairperson's Report
- 14. Communications and Petitions from Councilpersons
- 15. Public listed Participation (on any subject within the jurisdiction of the Town Council) (3 minute limit)
- 16. Adjournment

## B. <u>MEETINGS</u>:

**Regular meetings** are held on the second and fourth Tuesday of each month.

**Special meetings** shall be called by the Chairperson either at his/her own discretion or upon his/her receipt of a written request by any three Councilpersons to the Chairperson. Special meetings shall require 24 hours posted notice.

<u>Emergency meetings</u> can be called by the Chairperson at any time in accordance with the Freedom-of-Information laws. The Vice-Chairperson may call the emergency meeting in the absence/or in lieu of the Chairperson.

# C. PERSONAL CONDUCT AT MEETINGS:

It shall be the duty of the Chairperson to preserve order and require procedure in accordance with the rules of the Council; to recognize and grant the floor to members wishing to speak; to declare all votes, and if any vote be doubted, to again put the questions, and to order a vote by a showing of raised hands, or roll call if he/she so desires, or if demanded by any member.

Members of the Council shall confine their remarks in debate to the pending question, and shall avoid personalities or imputing improper motives to any member.

Members shall not speak more than once upon any question until other members who desire to speak shall have relinquished the floor.

Members of the public shall observe the same rules of propriety, decorum, and good conduct applicable to members of the Town Council.

# **RULES OF PROCEDURE**

# Page Three

When recognized by the Chairperson, the elector or their interpreter should approach the designated area where their voice can be heard by electronic equipment such as the Town's OWL camera recording system or a microphone. The elector is to provide their name and address. Electors may speak for up to two minutes under Agenda item #5 on any topic within the jurisdiction of the Town Council. Electors may also speak for up to three minutes under Agenda item #15 on any topic within the jurisdiction of the Town Council. When speaking, electors shall avoid personalities or imputing of improper motive to any person.

Members of the Town Council, as recognized by the Chairperson, may offer points of information to clarify or correct any misstatement of facts made during the meeting.

## D. PUBLIC PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS:

An elector may petition the Council in writing, if practical, to include a new item on the agenda for the next regular meeting of the Council, but shall refrain from any discussion of said item except when the Chairperson, supported by a unanimous consensus of the Council present, shall suspend the rules.

# E. <u>COMMUNICATIONS/REPORTS FROM OFFICERS, BOARDS, AND</u> <u>COMMITTEES DIRECTLY RESPONSIBLE TO THE TOWN COUNCIL:</u>

All reports of Committees, Commissions, and Boards shall be in writing when practical, and if a vote or ordinance is recommended, a copy of such proposed vote or ordinance shall accompany the report. The Chairperson may request the presence of any chairperson for the purpose of a verbal report if and when the need arises.

#### F. <u>NEW BUSINESS</u>:

Requests for new business calling for action or discussion by the Councilpersons shall be in writing and shall be filed with the Town Manager, in lieu of the Clerk of the Council, not later than the seventh day preceding the date of the next regular Council meeting, provided that this rule shall not prevent a Councilperson from introducing at a meeting a matter of new business on which he/she does not call for action at that meeting.

The Chairperson shall instruct the Town Manager what matters are to be placed on the agenda of the next Council meeting. The Town Manager shall send to all Councilpersons a copy of such agenda and in lieu of causing the publication of the agenda, the agenda shall be made available to the press.

Any Public Hearing or New Business items (Action/Discussion items) tabled at one meeting shall be listed under Old Business on a subsequent agenda. Original backup materials provided shall not be reduplicated from one meeting to the next for any items listed under Old Business and may include any additional required information.

#### **RULES OF PROCEDURE**

Page Four

Items for which action is expected at the meeting which the item first appears under New Business shall begin with the words "Approval of .....". Items for which discussion only is expected at the meeting shall begin with the words "Discussion of .....".

### G. SUSPENSION OF RULES OF PROCEDURE:

Any of the Standing Rules may be suspended by a 2/3 vote of the members present and voting in the affirmative.

# H. COMMUNICATION WITH TOWN STAFF:

Town Council members communication with Staff shall be in compliance with the Charter § C4-9.

Questions from Council members regarding agenda items sent via email to the Town Manager should also be copied to the Chairperson and Vice Chairperson. A reasonable effort will be made to provide answers to questions ahead of the meeting. Responses will be shared with all Council members as well as the public through publishing responses in the meeting packet. If unavailable for the meeting packet, it will be added to the minutes.